#### Social Impact Assessment Study of

## Re-construction of Chittar Bridge in Vithura-Ponmudi Road in Vithura Village of Nedumangadu Taluk of Thiruvananthapuram District (0.1823 Hectares)

Draft Report 18-07-2022

Requisition Authority

Public Work Department
(Bridges Division)

# By KERALA VOLUNTARY HEALTH SERVICES

COLLECTORATE P.O. MULLANKUZHY KOTTAYAM – 686002

E-mail: keralavhs@yahoo.co.in Web: www.keralavhs.org



#### Social Impact Assessment Study of

## Re-construction of Chittar Bridge in Vithura-Ponmudi Road in Vithura Village of Nedumangadu Taluk Of Thiruvananthapuram District (0.1823 Hectares)

**Draft Report** 

Requisition Authority

Public Work Department
(Bridges Division)

## By KERALA VOLUNTARY HEALTH SERVICES

COLLECTORATE P.O. MULLANKUZHY KOTTAYAM – 686002

E-mail: keralavhs@yahoo.co.in Web: www.keralavhs.org



#### CONTENTS

#### **CHAPTER 1 - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

- 1.1. Introduction Project and Public Purpose
- 1.2. Location
- 1.3. Size and Attributes of Land Acquisition
- 1.4. Alternatives Considered
- 1.5. Social Impact
- 1.6. Mitigation Measures
- 1.7. Detailed Mitigation Plan
- 1.8. Assessment of Social Impacts at different Phases of Project

#### Annexures

- 1. List of PAFs.
- 2. Photographs Field Investigation
- 3. Gazette Notification regarding SIA study.



## CHAPTER 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

#### 1.1. Introduction - Project and Public purpose

Roads and Bridges are an important catalyst in the development of an area. The up scaling of transportation and communication facilities due to Roads and Bridges help the people to explore new opportunities. Many a times this infrastructure developments support disaster preparedness and building confidence in people.

The proposed project ie, the construction of Chittar bridge, Vithura Village, Vithura Panchayath is one of the major infrastructure development initiative addressing the issues of disaster management as well as safe travel through State High Way 45. The Project intended to construct a new bridge across Chittar River just South side of the existing Chittar Bridge. The Project also aimed to straighten the existing curve which is one of the accident prone spot in State High way 45. The discussion about the project started in early 2016 after the 2015's flood and thereafter the visit of Central team in flood affected areas. The Detailed Project proposal developed and submitted in 2017 by public works Department. The project got administrative sanction in 2021 and proceedings of land acquisition started.

As part of the land acquisition process the project was placed for Social Impact Assessment Study. This draft report was prepared as part of the study.

#### 1.2 Location

The project is located in Anayara area of Vithura Village of Vithura Panchayath of Nedumangadu Taluk. The project area is 0.1823 hectare which belongs to thirteen tittle holders. Location of the project is rural in nature and predominantly agricultural land. Out of the



thirteen title holders seven area, residing in the area. Project location is the gate way to Western Ghats and famous tourist center Ponmudi.

## 1.3 Size and Attributes of Land Acquisition

### Land Acquisition Authority

The Special Tahsildar Additional (LA) Unit office, Civil Station Thiruvananthapuram prepares the acquisition details including land sketch and extent of acquisition etc. Boundary stones were laid for proposed acquisition lands. Deputy Collector (LA), Thiruvananthapuram is the supervising authority of the whole acquisition process.

# Implementing Agency - Kerala Public Works Department (Bridges Division)

Public Works Department in the State of Travancore (which later formed the major part of Kerala State following the reorganization of states in 1956) made its beginning in the year 1823 with the formation of the Maramath Department as a branch of the Huzur Cutcherry (Government Secretariat) with an executive branch known as the Panivakai Maramath. The Administration Report of the department for the year 1873-74 states that "the new roads of which very nearly 1000 miles have been either completely opened or are in various stages of progress have tapped an enormous tract of the country hitherto almost inaccessible, giving fresh impetus to agriculture".

The PWD Code was introduced in 1901. The department was periodically reorganized and in 1935-36, the administrative staff under the Chief Engineer consisted of 7 Executive Engineers in charge of divisions, 8 Assistant Engineers and 8 Sub-Engineers in charge of sub-divisions and Supervisors and Overseers in charge of sections. Over the years the department has grown substantially and now has 5 Chief Engineers, 22 Superintending Engineers, 81 Executive Engineers, 284 Assistant Executive Engineers, 638 Assistant Engineers and other



supporting staff. The length of roads under the department at present is 33,593 km.

Bridges wing is formed exclusively for the construction and maintenance of various types of bridges under Kerala PWD on 27.03.2018 as a part of the initiative "Puthiya kalam Puthiya nirmanam". This wing is formed based on the Road and Bridge Maintenance Policy of the Government. This wing is headed by a Chief Engineer (Bridges) with supporting staff. This wing is having its headquarters at Thiruvananthapuram with two circle offices seven division offices fourteen subdivisions and forty section offices.

A total number of 2768 bridges are being maintained by PWD Bridges Wing, Kerala out of which 427 bridges are in State Highways and 1938 are in Major District Roads/ Other District Roads.

#### Details of project affected families

The social Impact Assessment Survey finds that 13 Title Holders including one land owned by Vyapari Vyavasayi Association. The project also impacted to 1 Non -Title Holder who is running tea shop in the project area. The Socio-Cultural and Economic details of the project affected tittle holders shows that all are belongs to middle class or upper middle class. The literacy level of Title Holders says that all are literate. 10 numbers are above 10th standard. Ten title holders are Hindus and two are Muslims. Sex ratio shows that seven tittle holders are women and five are men.

### Details of the acquiring land

Project area is located North and West side of existing Chittar Bridge, in Anayara area of Vithura Village. The area is just one kilometer away from Vithura Jn. and Twenty two kilometer from Ponmudi. It is predominantly an agricultural area with Residential houses. The nearness to the Vithura Town and the State High way 45 passing through increases the importance of the area in terms of commercial and Residential status. The area is in the bank of Chittar River which is the tributary of Vamanapuram River. During the monsoon season



several times the area become flooded as traffic through the state high way would be interrupted. The project area belongs to thirteen title holders and Government land.

#### Socio Economic and Cultural Profile

The Socio-Cultural and Economic details of the project affected title holders shows that all are belongs to middle class or upper middle class. The literacy level of Title Holders says that all are literate. 10 numbers are above 10<sup>th</sup> standard. Ten title holders are Hindus and two are Muslims. Sex ratio shows that seven tittle holders are women and five are men.

#### 1.4. Alternatives

The project aimed to address the traffic issue due to the low level and normal width of the existing bridge and no visible and more benefitted alternative to the project has not been suggested either by project affected people or people in the area.

#### 1.5. Social Impact

Lose of land of Thirteen title holders and Frontage loss of a Commercial structure are the primary impact of the project. The lose of frond land of two residence may also be considered as a direct impact. Two title holders area losing more than 50% of their land in the project area. One title holder demanded to acquire his remaining unused land which is an approximate area of 2 cents. But the story of the second title holder is different. He don't have any land other than the acquiring one. Which he purchased for construction of residence. If the project or local body give permission to construct the residence in the remaining land by accepting the building rules, it would be mitigate the impact.

Other little holders are willing to give their land for the project subjected to the condition that they need to get satisfactory compensation.



7

Two Panchayath road and private road is starting from the project area. The access to these roads would be resettled.

People in the area demanded to retain the present bridge with limited access to small vehicles.

#### 1.6 Mitigation Measures

| S1.<br>No | Risk<br>Assumed                 | Approach                        | Mitigation Strategy  |
|-----------|---------------------------------|---------------------------------|--|
| 1         | Loss of Part of<br>Residence    | Rehabilitation/<br>Compensation | Ensure rehabilitation. Compensate the loss. Case by case approach in resettlement. Eg Relaxation in municipal Act etc. Grievance regarding the valuation and missing of structure will redress in time bound manner. |
| 2         | Loss of Part of land            | Compensation                    | Compensate the loss.   |
| 3         | Loss of Part of<br>Building     | Compensation                    | Compensate the loss. Case by case approach in resettlement. Eg Relaxation in municipal Act etc. Grievance regarding the valuation and missing of structure will redress in time bound manner.                        |
| 4         | Loss of Part of structure       | Compensation                    | Compensate the loss.   |
| 5         | Loss of<br>Agricultural<br>Land | Compensation                    | Compensate the loss.   |



| 6  | Formation of bit lands               | Control                 | Acquire the bit land.  |
|----|--------------------------------------|-------------------------|--|
| 7  | Loss of Cash crops                   | Compensation            | Compensate the loss.   |
| 8  | Loss of access to properties         | Control                 | Prepare a resettlement plan<br>in consultation with Project<br>Affected Families.  |
| 9  | Loss of Access<br>to sub roads       | Control                 | Prepare a resettlement plan in consultation with Project Affected Families. The plan for resettlement of access will include it in the final Detailed Project Report. Case by case plan will be informed well in advance before starting project construction. |
| 10 | Road is very<br>near to<br>houses    | Safety/Resettle<br>ment | Take necessary action for the safety of houses.  |
| 11 | Loss of water supply pipes           | Resettle                | Resettle   |
| 12 | Loss of trees                        | Compensate & Control    | Compensate lose and plant equal number of trees in government lands.   |
| 13 | Involved in land acquisition process | Control                 | Ensure community participation in the whole process.   |
| 14 | Grievance                            | Control                 | Functional grievance redressal committee at village and district level.  |



## 1.7. Detailed mitigation Plan

|                         |                             |          |               |                        | ta a a de la compania |                                |
|-------------------------|-----------------------------|----------|---------------|------------------------|-----------------------|--------------------------------|
| Potentia<br>1<br>Impact | Positive /<br>/<br>Negative | Likely   | Magnitu<br>de | Pre-<br>Mitigati<br>on | Post –<br>Mitigati    | Mitigati<br>on<br>Measure<br>s |
| Loss of                 | Negative                    | Possible | Maximu        | Mediu                  | High                  | Compensat                      |
| part of                 |                             |          | m             | m                      |                       | e the loss.                    |
| Residence               |                             |          |               |                        |                       |                                |
| Loss of                 | Negative                    | Possible | Maximu        | Maxim                  | Mediu                 | Compensat                      |
| Part of                 |                             |          | m             | um                     | m                     | e the loss.                    |
| land                    |                             |          |               |                        |                       |                                |
| Loss of                 | Negative                    | Possible | Maximu        | Maxim                  | Mediu                 | Compensat                      |
| Part of                 |                             |          | m             | um                     | m                     | e the loss.                    |
| Building                |                             |          |               |                        |                       | Case by                        |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        |                       | case                           |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        |                       | approach in                    |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        |                       | resettlemen                    |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        |                       | t. Eg                          |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        |                       | Relaxation                     |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        |                       | in                             |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        |                       | municipal                      |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        |                       | Act etc.                       |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        |                       | Grievance                      |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        |                       | regarding                      |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        |                       | the                            |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        |                       | valuation                      |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        |                       | and missing                    |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        | 1                     | of structure                   |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        |                       | will redress                   |
|                         |                             |          |               |                        |                       | in time                        |



|                                   |          |          |             |             |            | bound<br>manner.  |
|-----------------------------------|----------|----------|-------------|-------------|------------|---|
| Loss of<br>Part of<br>structure   | Negative | Possible | Maximu<br>m | Maxim<br>um | Mediu<br>m | Compensat e the loss.   |
| Loss of<br>Agricultur<br>al Land  | Negative | Possible | Maximu<br>m | Maxim<br>um | Mediu<br>m | Compensat e the loss.   |
| Formatio<br>n of bit<br>lands     | Negative | Possible | Moderate    | Minim<br>um | Low        | Acquire the bit land.   |
| Loss of<br>Cash<br>crops          | Negative | Possible | Medium      | Minim<br>um | Low        | Compensat e the loss.   |
| Loss of access to properties      | Negative | Possible | Medium      | Minim<br>um | Low        | Prepare a resettlemen t plan in consultatio n with Project Affected Families. |
| Loss of<br>Access to<br>sub roads | Negative | Possible | Medium      | Minim<br>um | Low        | Prepare a resettlemen t plan in consultatio n with Project Affected           |



|                                   |          |          |             |             |     | Families. The plan for resettlemen t of access will include it in the final Detailed Project Report. |
|-----------------------------------|----------|----------|-------------|-------------|-----|--|
| Road is<br>very near<br>to houses | Negative | Possible | Medium      | Minim<br>um | Low | Take necessary action for the safety of houses.  |
| Loss of water supply pipes        | Negative | Possible | Low         | Minim<br>um | Low | Resettle   |
| Loss of<br>trees                  | Negative | Possible | Minimu<br>m | Minim<br>um | Low | Compensat e lose and plant equal number of trees in government lands.                                |
| Involved<br>in land               | Positive | Possible | Minimu<br>m | Minim<br>um | Low | Ensure community participatio n in the   |



| acquisitio<br>n process |          |          |             |             |     | whole process.  |
|-------------------------|----------|----------|-------------|-------------|-----|---|
| Grievance               | Positive | Possible | Minimu<br>m | Minim<br>um | Low | Functional grievance redressal committee at village and district level. |

#### 1.8 Assessment of Social Costs and Benefits

Since there is no residence affected or displaced, the impact of the project is very minimum. By providing satisfactory compensation this could be further mitigated.

Two tittle holders are losing more than 50% of their land. Out of it one tittle holder demanded to acquire remaining portion of the land which become unused after the acquisition. But the second title holder is not having any other land property to construct a residence residents. So he requested the government to give special sanction to construct a house in the remaining portion of the land. Technical verification and advice to the request may mitigate the impact.

The public interest of the project is very visible seeing the people's support to the project. The project aimed to address the traffic issue due to the low level and normal width of the existing bridge and no visible and more benefitted alternative to the project has not been suggested either by project affected people or people in the area.



The above facts shows that the project is having high level of public interest and no other visible alternatives is available. The Social Impact of the project is very minimum in compared to the benefit of the project.

SAJU V ITTY,

CHAIRMAN,

SIA UNIT

#### **Annexures**

List of PAFs.

Photographs – Field Investigation

Gazette Notification regarding SIA study.



## ചിറ്റാർ പാലം പുനർ നർമ്മാണം. നെടുമങ്ങാട് താലൂക്ക്, വിതുര വില്ലേജ്

## പദ്ധതി ബാധിതരുടെ പേര് വിവരങ്ങൾ

#### വലത് വശം

|              | സർവ്വേ                                | പേരും മേൽവിലാസവും              | ഫോൺ        | ബാധിക്കഷെടുന്ന    |
|--------------|---------------------------------------|--------------------------------|------------|-------------------|
| <b>6</b> (2) | /നമ്പർ                                |                                | നമ്പർ      | വസ്തുവിന്റെ       |
| നം.          |                                       |                                |            | വിവരണം            |
|              | 363/2-1                               | സലിംകുഞ്ഞ്                     | 8281551198 | വീടിനോട് ചേർന്ന്  |
| 1            |                                       | s/o സുൽത്താൻ പിള്ള             |            | സ്ഥലം             |
|              |                                       | ചിറ്റാർറോഡ് അരികത്ത് വീട്,     |            |                   |
|              |                                       | ആനപ്പാറ പി.ഒ., ചിറ്റാർ, വിതുര. |            |                   |
| 2            | = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = | ഷൈലഇ                           | 8129623248 | കടമുറി (1 സെന്റ്) |
| 3            | 363/2-1                               | ഇഗദമ്മ (ശിവനിപ്പിള്ള, തങ്കമ്മ  | 9446569308 | സ്ഥലം             |
|              | x                                     | മുതൽപ്പേർ)                     |            |                   |
|              |                                       | ചിറ്റാർറോഡ് അരികത്ത് വീട്,,    |            |                   |
|              |                                       | ആനഷാറ പി.ഒ., ചിറ്റാർ, വിതുര.   |            |                   |
| 4            | 363/2-1                               | ജസ്റ്റിൻ                       |            | സ്ഥലം             |
|              | -2                                    | s/o ജഗദമ്മ                     |            |                   |
|              |                                       | ചിറ്റാർറോഡ് അരികത്ത് വീട്,,    |            |                   |
|              |                                       | ആനഷാറ പി.ഒ., ചിറ്റാർ, വിതുര.   |            |                   |
| 5            | 363/2-1                               | ങ്ങ                            |            | സ്ഥലം             |
|              | -2                                    | W/o ജസ്റ്റിൻ                   |            |                   |
|              |                                       | ചിറ്റാർറോഡ് അരികത്ത് വീട്,,    |            |                   |
|              |                                       | ആനഷാറ പി.ഒ., ചിറ്റാർ, വിതുര.   |            |                   |
| 6            | 349/2                                 | വിജയകുമാർ വി                   | 9495038810 | സ്ഥലം             |
|              | 345                                   | c/o വിനോദ്കുമാർ                |            | An   17 1/2 - 1   |
|              |                                       | ഉഷസ്, ആനഷാറ പി.ഒ., ചിറ്റാർ,    |            | - 1               |
|              |                                       | വിതുര                          |            |                   |



#### ഇടത് വശം

| 7  | 351/1-2-2            | സൗമ്യ എസ് $\mathbf{c}/\mathbf{o}$ കുട്ടൻപിള്ള, സരിത നിവാസ് ആനഷാറ പി.ഒ., ചിറ്റാർ | 9605753578 | കൊടി മരം<br>ഷെഡിനോട്<br>ചേർന്ന്<br>പോകുന്നു |
|----|----------------------|---|------------|---|
| 8  | 351/1-2-1            | സുമി ഗോപകുമാർ  c/o ഗോപകുമാർ  കുമാർ വിലാസം കളീക്കൽ, വിതുര                        | 9745724169 | സ്ഥലം                                       |
| 9  | 351/1-2<br>351/1-1-3 | അനിഷ എ.എൻ $W/O$ അഡ്വ. ഷംനാദ് എസ്. ഷംനാദ് മൻസിൽ. കാലംകടവ്, പേഷാറ പി.ഒ, വിതുര.    | 9446115650 | സ്ഥലം                                       |
| 10 | 351/1-2-2<br>20398   | സൻജീവ്, $C/O$ ഷീജ, തിരുവോണം, ആനഷാറ<br>പി.ഒ.,ചിറ്റാർ                             | 9447585372 | സ്ഥലം                                       |
| 11 | 351/<br>1-2-4        | സുരേഷ്കുമാർ <b>C/O</b> മിനികുമാരി തിരുവോണം, ആനഷാറ പി.ഒ.,ചിറ്റാർ                 | 9447352930 | സ്ഥലം                                       |
| 12 | 351/ 1 -1            | സതീഷ്കുമാർ<br>സതീഷ് മന്ദിരം, ആനഷാറ<br>പി.ഒ.,ചിറ്റാർ                             | 7012399339 | സ്ഥലം                                       |
| 13 |                      | രാജേന്ദ്രൻ, പ്രസിഡന്റ്<br>വ്യാപാരി വ്യവസായി<br>അസോസിയേഷൻ                        | 9495390059 | സ്ഥലം                                       |



## ചിറ്റാർ പാലം പുനർ നർമ്മാണം. നെടുമങ്ങാട് താലൂക്ക്, വിതുര വില്ലേജ്

## ഭൂ രഹിത പദ്ധതി ബാധിതരുടെ പേര് വിവരങ്ങൾ

| ക്രമ<br>നം. | പേരും മേൽവിലാസവും  | ഫോൺ<br>നമ്പർ | ബാധിക്കപ്പെടുന്ന<br>വസ്തുവിന്റെ<br>വിവരണം |
|-------------|--|--------------|---|
| 1           | സുധീർ എസ്.<br>എസ്. എസ്. റ്റീ ഷോഷ്<br>എസ്. എസ്. മൻസിൽ, കൊച്ചുമുല്ലചിറ,<br>ആനഷാറ പി.ഒ.,ചിറ്റാർ | 7306849078   | കടമുറ                                     |



#### **PHOTOGRAPHAS**















© കേരള സർക്കാർ Government of Kerala 2022



Regn.No. KERBIL/2012/45073 dated 05-09-2012 with RNI Reg No.KL/TV(N)/634/2021-2023

# കേരള ഗസറ്റ് KERALA GAZETTE

## അസാധാരണം

**EXTRAORDINARY** 

ആധികാരികമായി പ്രസിദ്ധപ്പെടുത്തുന്നത് PUBLISHED BY AUTHORITY

വാല്യം 11 Vol. XI തിരുവനന്തപുരം, തിങ്കൾ

Thiruvananthapuram, Monday 2022 ജൂൺ 06 06th June 2022 1197 ഇടവം 23

23rd Idavam 1197 **1944 ജോപ്** 0o **16** 16th Jyaishta 1944 mമ്പർ No.

1859

ഫാറം - 4 ചട്ടം 11(3) കാണുക **വിജ്ഞാപനം** 

നമ്പർ കൊ13 -317935/21

2022 ജൂൺ 01

ചുവടെ പട്ടികയിൽ വിവരിക്കുന്ന ഭൂമി ഒരു പൊതു ആവശ്യത്തിലേയ്ക്കായി അതായത് വിതുര – പൊൻമുടി റോഡിൽ ചിറ്റാർ പാലം പുനർനിർമ്മാണത്തിന് ആവശ്യമുണ്ടെന്നോ ആവശ്യമുണ്ടായേക്കാമെന്നോ കേരളാ സർക്കാരിന് ബോദ്ധ്യപ്പെട്ടതി നാലും

ഭൂമി ഏറ്റെടുക്കലിൽ ന്യായമായ നഷ്ടപരിഹാരത്തിനും സുതാര്യതയ്ക്കും പുനരധിവാസത്തിനും പുനസ്ഥാപനത്തിനുമുള്ള ആക്ട് 2013 ലെ (2013 ലെ 30–ാം കേന്ദ്ര ആക്ട്) 4–ാം വകുപ്പിന്റെ (1)–ാം ഉപവകുപ്പനുസരിച്ച് കേരള സർക്കാരിൽ നിക്ഷിപ്തമായിട്ടുള്ള അധികാരം വിനിയോഗിച്ച് താഴെ പട്ടികയിൽ വിവരിക്കുന്ന പ്രദേ ശത്ത് ഒരു സാമൂഹിക ആഘാത വിലയിരുത്തൽ നടത്താൻ തീരുമാനിച്ചിട്ടുള്ളതാണ്.



ആക്ടിൽ പരാമർശിക്കും ആയതിനാൽ പ്രകാരം സാമൂഹിക ആഘാത വിലയിരുത്തൽ പഠനം നടത്തുന്നതിനും സാമൂഹിക ആഘാത നിർവഹണ പദ്ധതി തയ്യാറാക്കുന്നതിനും സാമൂഹിക ആഘാത വിലയിരുത്തൽ പഠന യൂണിറ്റായ കേരള വോളന്ററി ഹെൽത്ത് സർവ്വീസ് , കളക്ടറേറ്റ്.പി.ഒ, കോട്ടയം (ഫോൺ നം.9847819080, ഇ-മെയിൽ keralavhs@yahoo.com) അനുമതി നൽകിയിരിക്കുന്നു. ടി പ്രവൃത്തി മൂന്നു മാസ കാലയളവിനുള്ളിൽ പൂർത്തീകരിക്കേണ്ടതും യാതൊരു കാരണ വശാലും ആറു മാസത്തിൽ അധികമാകാൻ പാടില്ലാത്തതുമാണ്.

#### പട്ടിക

*ജില്ല* — തിരുവനന്തപുരം. *താലൂക്ക്* — നെടുമങ്ങാട്. വില്ലേജ് —വിതുര.

(ഏകദേശ വിസ്തീർണ്ണമാണ് കൊടുത്തിരിക്കുന്നത്)

| നമ്പർ | സർവ്വെ<br>നമ്പർ | വിസ്തീർണ്ണം<br>(ഹെക്ടർ) | ഭൂമിയുടെ<br>ഇനം/തരം |
|-------|-----------------|-------------------------|---------------------|
| 1     | 345 (Pt)        |                         |                     |
| 2     | 349 (Pt)        | 0.1823                  | പുരയിടം             |
| 3     | 351 (Pt)        |                         |                     |
| 4     | 363 (Pt)        |                         |                     |
|       | ആകെ             | 0.1823 ഹെക്             | ക്ടർ                |

(ഒപ്പ്) ജില്ലാ കളക്ടർ തിരുവനന്തപുരം.



#### വിശദീകരണ കുറിപ്പ്

ഇത് വിജ്ഞാപനത്തിന്റെ ഭാഗമാകുന്നതല്ല.എന്നാൽ പൊതു ഉദ്ദേശം വെളി പ്പെടുത്തുന്നതിന് ഉദ്ദേശിച്ചുകൊണ്ടുള്ളതാണ്.

തിരുവനന്തപുരം ജില്ലയിൽ നെടുമങ്ങാട് താലൂക്കിൽ വിതുര വില്ലേജിൽ വിതുര – പൊൻമുടി റോഡിൽ ചിറ്റാർ പാലം പുനർനിർമ്മിക്കുന്നതിനായി സ്ഥലം ഏറ്റെടുക്കുന്നതുമായി ബന്ധപ്പെട്ട് 2013 ലെ ഭൂമി ഏറ്റെടുക്കലിൽ ന്യായമായ നഷ്ട പരി ഹാരത്തിനും സുതാര്യതയ്ക്കും പുനരധിവാസത്തിനും പുന:സ്ഥാപനത്തിനുമുള്ള അവ കാശ നിയമത്തിലെ വ്യവസ്ഥകൾക്ക് വിധേയമായി സാമൂഹിക ആഘാത വിലയിരുത്തൽ പഠനം നടത്തുന്നതിനും സാമൂഹിക ആഘാത നിർവ്വഹണ പദ്ധതി തയ്യാറാക്കുന്ന തിനും സാമൂഹിക ആഘാത വിലയിരുത്തൽ പഠന യൂണിറ്റായ കേരള വോളന്ററി ഹെൽത്ത് സർവ്വീസ് , കളക്ടറേറ്റ്.പി.ഒ, കോട്ടയം എന്ന സ്ഥാപനത്തിന് അനുമതി നൽകിയിരിക്കുന്നു.

(ഈ വിജ്ഞാപനം മുകളിൽ പരാമർശിച്ച ലക്ഷ്യം കൈവരിക്കുന്നതിലേക്കായി മാത്രം.)

